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Case reference: MLA/2022/00134

 
24th October 2022
 
Dear Mr Corey,
 
Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009
Application for a marine licence (Ref: MLA/2022/00134)
 
The Marine Management Organisation (MMO) is the Licensing Authority for the
purpose of Part 4 of the Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009. You applied to us
on 29 March 2022 for a marine licence under Part 4 of the Marine and Coastal
Access Act 2009 to cover the deposit of a Stage 1 rocket component and fairings into
Portuguese waters, in connection with a satellite launch from Spaceport Cornwall.
 
There are no marine licensable activities within UK waters for this project, and
the only marine licensable activity is the deposit of the Stage 1 and fairing within
Portuguese waters. Section 66(1)3 of the Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009
(MCAA) provides for the licensing of deposits anywhere in the Sea (i.e. not just UK
waters) from an aircraft/vessel that was loaded within the UK. Therefore the MMO
is restricted to licensing the deposit activity only for this project. This licence should
be read in conjunction with the Space Industry Licence issued by the Civil Aviation
Authority (CAA) for this launch.

We have considered all the information that has been provided to us as well as any
representations made to us by interested parties. We have granted a licence to you,
the licence is enclosed with this letter. Our decision has been taken in accordance with
all relevant marine plans and policies.

The licence we have granted contains a number of conditions, including conditions
requiring mitigation or monitoring measures which can be found in section 5 of the
marine licence.

Terms and Conditions

General

This licence is your statutory consent to carry out the activity authorised by the licence.
You must comply with the terms and conditions of the licence in full, these are binding
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on you and any agent or subcontractor undertaking the activity on your behalf. If you
fail to comply with all the conditions in the licence we may vary, suspend or revoke your
licence, and we may also take enforcement action against you.

Please read the licence carefully before you carry out the activity authorised by the
licence

Post Consent Returns

Where the conditions of the licence require you to submit returns to us, you must ensure
these are submitted in accordance with the timescales set out in the licence and via
the Marine Case Management System: http://bit.ly/MMO_MCMS.

You must ensure that you discharge all the conditions of the licence before the licence
expires.

Where we are required to carry out post consent monitoring of the licence, including
any review or approval that is required, then we may charge you a fee for that work.
Where we propose to charge you such a fee we will provide you with an estimated cost
before proceeding with consideration of your return.

Fees

Where we do charge a fee, we will invoice you in respect of that fee. We expect full
payment to be made for any licence charges within 28 days of the date of the invoice
we send to you and non-payment of the invoice within the 28 days may result in us
suspending or revoking the licence. Our terms and conditions relating to charging can
be found here: http://bit.ly/MMO_Terms_and_Conditions.

Variations

Any requests for a variation to this licence should be made at least 3 months before
change is required or at least 3 months before the licence end date as specified in
section 1.3 of the licence. Any request for a variation which does not allow sufficient
time for us to fully consider and process the request before the licence expires will be
rejected. We cannot vary a licence once the licence end date has passed.

Additional consents

You may require permissions and consents from other organisations or persons before
you can carry on the activity authorised by this licence and a marine licence issued by
us does not absolve you from the need to hold these other consents or approvals before
you carry out the licensed activities. For example, planning consent is often necessary
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for works to be undertaken above the low water mark and consent from the landowner
may also be required. In some cases, approval from the Environment Agency may be
necessary (e.g. where the activities involve a discharge or have implications for flood
defences) or consent might be required from Natural England where your activities
have the potential to affect a Site of Specific Scientific Interest http://bit.ly/MMO_SSSI.
These examples are not intended to be an exhaustive list of other permissions that
may be required, you will need to make your own enquiries as to what, if any, other
authorisations and permissions are required.

Other Matters

The onus is on the licence holder to ensure that they are legally compliant with
the Wildlife and Countryside Act (1981 as amended) which covers marine protected
species, as listed in Schedule 5 of the Act. Further details of the species protected
through this legislation can be found at the following: -
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/protected-marine-species

The onshore station should be suitably equipped for its role in monitoring, surveillance,
and communications downrange, and with suitably qualified personnel.

It is advised that a post-mission completion meeting should be held with the MMO,
UK Maritime and Coastguard Agency (MCA) and the UK Hydrographic Office (UKHO)
within three weeks of the launch activity to discuss lessons learnt, what worked well
and what could be improved for future launches.

Appealing a decision

You may appeal our decision to grant the licence subject to conditions, any provision
within the licence and or the period of time over which the licence is granted. You have
6 months from the date of our decision to make your appeal. Your notice of Appeal
should be sent to the Planning Inspectorate (PINS) who will manage and decide any
appeal against our licensing decision.

Further guidance is available here: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/make-a-marine-
licence-application#after-a-decision-is-made

Your feedback

We are committed to providing excellent customer service and continually improving
our service and we would be delighted to know what you thought of the service you
have received from us. Please help us by taking a few minutes to complete the following
short survey: http://bit.ly/MMO_Survey.
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Finally, if you have any queries or require clarification of any of the terms or conditions
of the licence, please do not hesitate to contact me using the contact details below.

Yours Sincerely,
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Lucy Cowell
+44 (0)2030 257 620
lucy.cowell@marinemanagement.org.uk
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